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Contacts 
 
 

Office location:  Level 1 
87 Adelaide Terrace 
East Perth WA 6004 

 
 
Postal address:  PO Box 6119 

East Perth WA 6892 
 
 
Telephone:  (08) 9425 1888 
Facsimile:   (08) 9325 1041 
Toll free:   1800 634 541 
 
 
Internet:   www.rgl.wa.gov.au  
Email:   rgl@rgl.wa.gov.au 
 

 
 
Availability in other formats 
 
This publication can be made available in alternative formats such as compact disc, 
audiotape or Braille.  
 
People who have a hearing or speech impairment may call the National Relay Service on 
133 677 and quote telephone number (08) 9425 1888. 
 
The report is available in PDF format at www.rgl.wa.gov.au  
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Statement of Compliance 

Hon. Brendon Grylls MLA 
Minister for Housing; Racing and Gaming 

In accordance with section 61 of the Financial Management Act 2006, I hereby submit for 
your information and presentation to Parliament, the Annual Report of the Gaming and 
Wagering Commission of Western Australia for the financial year ended 30 June 2016. 

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial 
Management Act 2006. 

Michael Connolly 

Chairperson 
16 September 2016 

Page 3

Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Annual Report 2015-2016



Overview of the Commission 

Executive Summary

The Gaming and Wagering Commission 
met on 11 occasions during the reporting 
period to consider a range of issues, 
while more than 3,980 inspections/audits 
were conducted during 2015-16 on behalf 
of the Commission.  

During the year, 2,498 community gaming 
permits were issued, resulting in a gross 
amount of more than $73.8 million being 
raised by permit holders.  Following the 
deduction of event expenses, a net amount 
of approximately $27.5 million was 
returned to beneficiary organisations. 

In 2015-16, total gross casino taxable 
revenue of $741.9 million was generated, 
producing $64.8 million casino tax 
revenue; this compares favourably with last 
year’s figure of $59.7 million tax revenue.  

The Commission collects a product fee 
from wagering operators who use 
Western Australian race fields as part of 
their operations.  

This product fee is then remitted to Racing 
and Wagering Western Australia (RWWA) 
for distribution to registered Western 
Australian racing clubs.  In 2015-16, more 
than $48.6 million was distributed to racing 
clubs across the State, which compares 
favourably with the $42.2 million that was 
distributed in  2014-15. 

I take this opportunity to thank all members 
for their contribution to the effective 
operation of the Commission, as well as 
staff from the Department of Racing, 
Gaming and Liquor for their ongoing 
support. I would also like to take this 
opportunity to thank Mr Kevin Harrison, 
whose 10-year term on the Commission 
expired on 31 December 2015, for his 
contribution to the Commission.

Barry A Sargeant PSM 
Chairperson 
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Operational Structure 

Enabling Legislation 

The Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia is established as a statutory 
authority under section 4 of the Gaming and Wagering Commission Act 1987. 
 
Responsible Minister 

As at 30 June 2016, the Minister responsible for the Racing and Gaming portfolio was the 
Honourable Colin Holt MLC, Minister for Housing; Racing and Gaming. 
 
Responsibilities of the Gaming and Wagering Commission 

The Gaming and Wagering Commission Act 1987 legalises social gambling and allows other 
forms of gaming (minor gaming) for fund raising purposes by non-profit organisations 
provided they are authorised by a gaming permit and conducted on approved premises.  
 
Minor gaming comprises of two-up, bingo, standard lotteries, continuing lotteries and non 
casino type games approved by the Commission.  
 
The Commission is responsible for controlling and regulating gambling in Western Australia; 
its practices and policies are designed to maintain public confidence in the integrity of 
gambling.  The main duties of the Commission are to: 

 Administer the laws relating to gaming and betting; 

 Review the conduct, extent and character of gambling operations and the provision, use 
and location of gaming and wagering facilities; 

 Formulate and implement policies for the scrutiny, control and regulation of gaming and 
betting, taking into consideration the requirements and interests of the community as a 
whole; 

 Issue permits, certificates and employee licences; and 

 Provide advice to the Minister on any matter relating to gaming and betting. 

The broad objectives of the Commission in relation to the State's gambling industry are to: 

 Consider applications made under the Betting Control Act 1954, the Casino Control Act 
1984, the Gaming and Wagering Commission Act 1987 and the Racing and Wagering 
Western Australia Act 2003; 

 Licence directors and key employees of Racing and Wagering Western Australia, subject 
to the Racing and Wagering Western Australia Act 2003; and to grant, revoke or amend 
such approvals and licences; 

 Licence persons, partnerships and bodies corporate as bookmakers, bookmakers’ 
employees and bookmakers’ managers, subject to the provisions of the Betting Control 
Act 1954; and to grant, revoke or amend such approvals and licences; and 

 Seek, receive, disseminate or publish information relevant to gambling and the incidence 
of gaming and wagering, and its effect in the community.  
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Administered Legislation 

The Gaming and Wagering Commission is responsible for administering the following 
legislation: 

 Betting Control Act 1954; 

 Bookmakers Betting Levy Act 1954; 

 Casino (Burswood Island) Agreement Act 1985; 

 Casino Control Act 1984; 

 Gaming and Betting (Contracts and Securities) Act 1985; 

 Gaming and Wagering Commission Act 1987;  

 Gaming and Wagering Commission (Continuing Lotteries Levy) Act 2000; 

 Racing and Wagering Western Australia Act 2003;  

 Racing and Wagering Western Australia Tax Act 2003; 

 Racing Bets Levy Act 2009; and 

 Racing Restriction Act 2003. 

Other Legislation Impacting on the Commission’s Activities 

In the performance of its functions, the Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western 
Australia complies with the following relevant written laws: 

 Auditor General Act 2006; 

 Contaminated Sites Act 2003; 

 Disability Services Act 1993; 

 Equal Opportunity Act 1984; 

 Electronic Transactions Act 2003; 

 Financial Management Act 2006; 

 Freedom of Information Act 1992; 

 Industrial Relations Act 1979; 

 Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993; 

 Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984; 

 Public Sector Management Act 1994; 

 Salaries and Allowances Act 1975; 

 State Records Act 2000; and 

 State Supply Commission Act 1991.     
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Shared Responsibilities with other Agencies 

The Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia did not share any 
responsibilities with other agencies during the reporting period. 

Administrative Structure  

Section 12 of the Gaming and Wagering Commission Act 1987 provides that membership of 
the Commission shall comprise: 

 the person holding or acting in the office of Director General of the Department of Racing, 
Gaming and Liquor, who shall be ex officio Chairman of the Commission; and 

 not less than five, nor more than seven, members appointed by the Minister as persons 
of integrity, good repute and relevant experience. 

A member, other than the ex officio member, shall hold office for such period not exceeding 
three years, as specified in the instrument of appointment, but is eligible for reappointment. 
 
A person who is, or has been, a member of the Commission is not personally liable for any 
act done or omitted in good faith by the Commission or by that person acting as a member.  

Commission Membership  

During the reporting period, the members of the Gaming and Wagering Commission of 
Western Australia were: 
 
Mr Barry A Sargeant PSM – Chairperson 
Mr Sargeant is the Director General of the Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor and 
has held the position of Chairman of the Gaming and Wagering Commission since 1992. 
 
Mr Andrew Duckworth – Member 
 
Mr Duckworth has worked in senior positions in a number of Western Australian Government 
departments. Following a period as a prisoner educator, Mr Duckworth moved to the Health 
Department where he was involved in the creation and management of several Western 
Australian health promotion programs.  
 
Professor Colleen Hayward AM – Member 

Professor Hayward has more than 30 years experience in providing input to policies and 
programs on a wide range of issues reflecting the needs of minority groups.  She is currently 
Edith Cowan University’s Pro-Vice-Chancellor for Equity and Indigenous issues across the 
university.  
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Mr Robert Bovell – Member 
 
Mr Bovell recently retired as the Chief Executive of the Western Australian Trotting 
Association after 23 years of service.  As a result, he has extensive experience and 
knowledge of gambling, particularly in bookmaking and on-course totalisator wagering 
operations.   

 
Mr Trevor Fisher - Member 
 
Mr Fisher farmed in Kojonup for more than 40 years and was heavily involved in the Kojonup 
community, taking positions in local government and the football and tennis clubs.  
 
Mr Kevin Harrison – Former Member  
 
Mr Harrison is a past Commissioner, Chairman and Chief Executive of the West Australian 
Tourist Commission.  He has served on government boards at state, national and 
international levels.  
 
Mr Harrison’s term as a Commission member expired on 31 December 2015.  He served as 
a member of the Commission for the last 10 years.  
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Report on Operations 

Actual Results versus Budget Targets 

Financial Targets Target* Actual Variation 

Total cost of services (expense limit) 
(sourced from Statement of Comprehensive Income) 

$5,089,000 $4,962,8161 ($126,184) 

Net cost of services 
(sourced from Statement of Comprehensive Income) 

$856,000 $690,6532 ($165,347) 

Total equity 
(sourced from Statement of Financial Position) 

$7,748,095 $4,130,361 ($3,617,734) 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held  
(sourced from Statement of Cash Flows) 

($856,000) ($3,079,396) ($2,223,396) 

 No. No. No. 

Approved full time equivalent (FTE) staff level** 0 0 0 

Summary of Key Performance Indicators*** 

Key Effectiveness Indicators Target Actual Variation 
Percentage of unlawful gambling detected in 
relation to total audits 0.91% 0.49% 0.42% 

Number of violation reports/infringement notices 
issued in relation to casino gaming 5 4 1 

Key Efficiency Indicator Target Actual Variation 

Cost per Gambling Certificate/Permit issued $602 $499 ($103) 

Cost per Casino Employee Licence issued $834 $1,312 $478 

Cost of monitoring the integrity of casino gaming 
operations over one year $212,181 $264,272 $52,091 

Cost per instance of unlawful gambling detected $53,045 $132,136 $79,091 

Cost per casino submission received $855 $929 $74 

 
1 Excludes $56.5M related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts as identified in the Comprahensive 

Statement of Financial Income presented later in this report. 
2 Excludes $53.2M related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts as identified in the Comprahensive 

Statement of Financial Income presented later in this report. 

* Financial Targets as specified in the Budget Statements for the year in question. 

**Executive support for the Commission is provided by the Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor. 

***Explanations for the KPI variations between budget target and actual key performance indicator results are 
presented later in this report. 
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Licensing Program 

Community Gaming 
Section 51 of the Gaming and Wagering Commission Act 1987 provides that gaming cannot 
be promoted or otherwise conducted for the purposes of private gain or any commercial 
undertaking.  

Officers of the Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor act on behalf of the Commission to 
evaluate and determine applications that have been made pursuant to the provisions of the 
relevant legislation.  This process results in the grant or refusal of applications and where 
required the subsequent issue of the licence or permit sought. 

If a person is assisting in the conduct of community gaming for reward they are required to 
hold a Gaming Operator’s Certificate.  The integrity of gaming operators is paramount in the 
conduct of community gaming activities, therefore applicants must satisfy a probity 
investigation as well as demonstrate the required skills needed for working in the gaming 
industry. 

During 2015-16, 2,498 community gaming permits were approved, while a total of 195 
permits/certificates were issued across a number of areas relating to various gaming 
activities, such as the approval of premises to enable gaming activities to be conducted.  

The following table provides a four-year summary of the total number of gaming permits and 
certificates issued by the Commission. 

Number of Gaming Permits / 
Certificates Issued 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

Bingo 192 169 131 182 

Continuing Lottery 212 194 128 188 

Gaming Functions 456 437 511 618 

Standard Lottery 856 936 977 1,032 

Calcutta 51 47 54 56 

Two-up 50 80 68 68 

Video Lottery Terminals (VLTs) 386 345 267 354 

Total 2,203 2,208 2,136 2,498 

Class of Gaming Equipment 5 6 5 5 

Item of Gaming Equipment 3 2 3 3 

Approval of Premises 153 196 145 150 

Gaming Operator’s Certificate 26 21 36 33 

Supplier’s Certificate 8 9 10 4 

Total 195 234 199 195 
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 A gross amount of approximately $73.8 million was raised by permit holders during the 
reporting period; this was up by $20.2 million compared with gross revenue generated in 
2014-15. This increase in gross revenue can mainly be attributed to the increased popularity 
of ‘mega lotteries’ and subsequently, more organisations are now seeking permits for these 
types of lotteries. 

Following the deduction of expenses associated with running the event, an approximate net 
amount of $27.5 million was returned to beneficiary organisations for the active promotion, 
support or conduct of sporting, social, political, literary, artistic, scientific, benevolent, 
charitable or other similar activities within the Western Australian community.   

The following table provides a summary of the total gross and net revenue raised by gaming 
permit holders over the past three years. 

Comparison of Gross and Net Revenue Raised by Gaming Permit Holders 

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net 

Bingo $5,378,510 $594,019 $4,491,662 $194,426* $5,648,263 $677,126 

Continuing 
Lottery $5,824,688 $1,156,485 $4,255,978 $886,183 $4,161,303 $834,972 

Gaming 
Functions $3,652,391 $444,596 $3,991,570 $459,766 $3,712,972 $449,575 

Standard 
Lottery $36,672,333 $18,267,647 $35,965,232 $17,440,010 $53,926,038 $24,894,913 

Calcutta $513,131 $80,066 $419,970 $72,260 $304,349 $47,427 

Two-up $87,609 $39,084 $77,922 $34,435 $81,246 $33,642 

VLTs $10,206,471 $935,881 $5,472,656 $904,173 $6,052,769 $605,277 

Total $62,335,133 $21,517,778 $53,698,856 $19,858,794 $73,886,940 $27,542,932 

* This is a correction of the figure reported in the 2014-15 annual report.
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The following table provides a four-year summary of revenue raised from gaming-related fees 
charged by the Gaming and Wagering Commission. 

Revenue Raised by Fees 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

Bingo $61,966 $59,184 $59,030 $59,510 

Continuing Lottery $74,013 $78,271 $79,167 $57,166 

Gaming $328,260 $363,429 $419,297 $456,835 

Class of Gaming Equipment $529 $650 $959 $565 

Item of Gaming Equipment $181 $124 $186 $192 

Standard Lottery (including Calcutta) $63,270 $66,569 $73,888 $79,810 

Two-up $12,145 $19,183 $21,676 $26,320 

Operator's Certificate $5,691 $4,807 $10,604 $7,977 

Supplier's Certificate $1,476 $3,054 $4,341 $1,252 

Video Lottery Terminals $78,456 $79,716 $61,926 $71,263 

Approved Premises $7,620 $11,141 $9,460 $8,248 

Bookmaker $32,042 $28,775 $27,887 $23,114 

Bookmaker Manager $155 $582 $0 $269 

Bookmaker Employee $1,500 $1,080 $540 $540 

RWWA Director / Key Employee $6,446 $16,656 $5,006 $5,140 

Casino Key Employee $28,524 $24,205 $40,729 $39,106 

Casino Non Key Employee $138,770 $57,064 $133,542 $94,281 

Total $841,044 $814,490 $948,238 $931,588 

Casino Gaming 

Licensing of Casino Employees and Casino Key Employees 

All staff involved in gambling activities or in support of the licensed casino at Crown Perth 
must be licensed under the Casino Control (Burswood Island) (Licensing of Employees) 
Regulations 1985. 

The following table provides a four-year summary of the total number of licences in operation. 

CASINO EMPLOYEE LICENSING 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

Casino Key Employee 417 408 442 488 

Casino Employee 1,895 1,839 1,779 1,850 

Total 2,312 2,247 2,221 2,338 
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Amendment to the Casino Licensed Gaming Area 

During the 2015-16 financial year, Crown Perth sought the Commission’s support for an 
application to the Minister for Racing and Gaming seeking approval to increase the area of 
the casino’s licensed gaming footprint.   

The project, once finalised, would result in the relocation of the existing “Meridian Room” 
premium gaming facility, thereby providing increased patron comfort with an improved and 
contemporary layout.  At its October 2015 meeting, the Commission resolved to support the 
request and submitted Crown’s application with a recommendation to the Minister for 
consideration.  

Subsequently, the “New Meridian” project was approved by the Minster.  The new area 
accommodates additional gaming products that have previously been approved for use.  
Commissioning of the new Meridian Room is scheduled to occur before the end of 2016. 

Casino Revenue 
In 2015-16, gross casino gaming revenue of $741.9 million was generated, producing 
approximately casino tax revenue of $64.9 million for the State.  

The following table provides a comparison of the past two years of gross casino revenue and 
tax payable.  Continuing on from last year, Baccarat continues to be the largest generator of 
gross casino revenue for 2015/2016, representing approximately 44 percent of the total gross 
revenue, while EGMs represent approximately 37 percent total gross revenue. 

Gross Casino Revenue by Game Type and Total Tax Payable 

2014-15 2015-16 

Electronic Gaming Machines $281,218,241 $277,989,865 

Fully Automated Table Games $7,818,759 $9,908,424 

Roulette Games $64,364,323 $63,395,910 

Baccarat Games $383,672,228 $328,573,018 

Blackjack $46,963,697 $42,924,646 

Other games $50,496,706 $19,099,457 

Total Gross Casino Revenue $834,533,954 $741,891,320 

Casino Tax Payable $59,703,780 $64,863,205 
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As at 30 June 2016, Crown Perth had approval to operate a maximum of 320 table 
games, and 2,400 electronic gaming machines. However, as at 30 June, only 234 table 
games and 2,190 electronic gaming machines were in operation. 

Casino Attendance 
The expansion of Crown Perth from a gaming based enterprise to a broader entertainment 
complex has seen attendance figures since 2013-14 exceed eight million visitations per 
annum.   

Casino Attendance Figures 

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

7,726,346 8,507,044 8,336,607 8,092,841 

Wagering 

Wagering Revenue 

During the reporting period, wagering revenue of $329.3 million (excluding GST) was 
generated by Racing and Wagering Western Australia (RWWA), producing more than $42.2 
million in wagering taxation for the State.   

Licensing of Racing and Wagering Western Australia (RWWA) Directors and Key 
Employees 

RWWA’s directors and key employees are required to be licensed in accordance with the 
Racing and Wagering Western Australia Act 2003.  A RWWA key employee is considered to 
be someone who is: 

 Employed or working in a managerial capacity; or

 Empowered to make decisions that regulate the gambling operations of the organisation;
or

 Designated as a key employee by the Commission due to their influence, remuneration
or function within the organisation.

The following table provides a four-year summary of the total number of licences in operation. 

RWWA Employee Licences 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

Directors 11 11 11 10 

Key Employee 72 76 78 81 

Total 83 87 89 91 
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Licensing of Bookmaker Operations 
Bookmakers and bookmakers’ employees are required to be licensed in accordance with the 
Bookmakers Betting Levy Act 1954.  The following table provides a summary of the total 
number of licences in operation over the past four years.  As has been the trend for the last 
number of years the number of licences has continued to decline which could be attributed to 
increased competition from large corporate and online bookmakers licensed in other 
jurisdictions. 
 
Bookmaker Licences 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 
As at 30 June 40 38 37 34 
Bookmaker’s Manager Licences     
Issued 1 1 0 3 
Expired 0 0 1 0 
Bookmaker’s Employee Licences     
Issued 50 36 22 18 
Expired 54 39 16 0 
 
 
Racing Bets Levy Returns 

The Commission is responsible for collecting and disbursing the racing bets levy paid by 
wagering operators who use Western Australian race fields as part of their wagering 
operations.   The Commission remits all levies (less a monthly administration fee) to Racing 
and Wagering Western Australia (RWWA) for distribution among all racing clubs registered in 
Western Australia. 
 
During the reporting period, the Commission remitted more than $48 million in racing bets levy 
to RWWA for distribution.   Since the introduction of the racing bets levy scheme, the 
Commission has remitted more than $248 million to RWWA for distribution to Western 
Australian racing clubs. 
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Compliance Program 
 
To allow for gaming to be conducted lawfully and in a responsible manner, the Gaming and 
Wagering Commission provides a range of inspectorial and audit functions for casino, 
wagering and community gaming.  Inspectorial functions carried out by the Commission 
include: 
 
 Casino audits, inspections and investigations; 

 Physical inspections and auditing of financial returns relating to permitted gaming 
activities; 

 Inspection of race day activities; 

 Audits of TAB agencies; and 

 Investigation of complaints. 

The Commission also has an arrangement with Lotterywest to conduct verification functions 
for all Lotto and Cash 3 draws. 
 
The inspectorial program also enforces the provisions of the Racing Bets Levy Act 2009, 
Betting Control Act 1954, the Casino Control Act 1984, the Gaming and Wagering 
Commission Act 1987 and the Racing and Wagering Western Australia Act 2003, so that 
adequate controls are in place to maintain compliance with legislative requirements and to 
monitor the ongoing effectiveness of those controls.   
 
The following table provides a four-year summary of the number and nature of audits, 
inspections, assessments and investigations conducted by the Commission.  A breakdown of 
these figures is provided in the subsequent table.   
 
During the reporting period, the introduction of the State Government’s Workforce Renewal 
Policy resulted in a reduced number of inspectors employed at the Department. In addition, 
for a period of five months, four inspectors assisted the licensing team with the consolidation 
of the newly implemented unified regulatory sytem. These factors contributed to the 
decreased number of audits, inspections, assessments and investigations conducted in this 
reporting period compared to the previous reporting period.  
 
AUDITS, INSPECTIONS, ASSESSMENTS 
AND INVESTIGATIONS 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

Racing 323 522 443 364 

Lotterywest 706 756 798 1,061 

Community Gaming 364 280 398 255 

Casino 3,726 3,021 3,460 2,301 

Total 5,119 4,579 5,099 3,981 
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This table provides a four-year summary of the number and nature of compliance activities 
undertaken by the Department. 
 
Inspectorate Program 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 
Wagering 
Bookmaker telephone betting inspections 16 18 8 19 
Bookmaker licensing and equipment checks 1 1 1 6 
Bookmaker betting operations inspections 1 1 51 9 
TAB agency inspections and cash counts 180 371 295 269 
On course tote inspections and audits 2 4 3 8 
Sports betting contingency audit 0 0 0 0 
Racing bets levy return audits  0 0 0 2 
Racing Audits - Other 36 
Racing industry GST reimbursement claims 
received 79 92 85 151 

Racing industry GST reimbursement audits 
conducted  0 1 0 0 

Lotterywest  
Verification of Cash 3, Lotto/Soccer Pools, 
Promotional Draws and GST Claims. 706 756 796 1,061 

Community Gaming 
Gaming inspections performed 198 154 216 129 
Gaming investigations conducted 15 4 15 68 
Gaming audits conducted 91 90 167 58 
Casino 
EGM Prom and seal checks completed  2,564 403 1,971 1,416 
Revenue Audits 363 365 256 300 
Illegal activity detected 6 10 5 4 
Casino audits and inspections completed 7 1,476 495 447 
Casino GST reimbursement claims received 12 12 7 1 

Submissions to the Gaming and Wagering Commission 
Racing industry  7 2 5 3 
Racing and Wagering Western Australia  37 32 16 17 
Gaming  41 27 30 17 
Casino  49 29 38 33 
Gaming Compliance issues 19 5 6 15 
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This table represents a four-year summary of the number and nature of non-compliance 
issues detected by Departmental inspectors.  
 
Non Compliance with Legislative 
Requirements 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

Community Gaming and Casino Infringements 
Issued 37 34 19 3 

Gaming Cautions Issued 22 8 19 9 

Violation reports against the casino operation 
(relating to breaches of game rules, procedures 
or directions) 

11 9 5 4 

Casino Prosecutions 2 0 0 0 

Racing Prosecutions/Cautions Issued  5 2 1 0 

Total 77 53 44 16 
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National Gambling Statistics 
 
Australian Gambling Statistics 
 
The Australian Gambling Statistics (AGS) is a comprehensive set of statistics relating to 
gambling in Australia, covering the entire range of legal Australian gambling products.  The 
AGS report has been produced since 1984 and is compiled by the Queensland Government 
Statistician’s Office in cooperation with all Australian state and territory governments.  The 
key statistics from the latest report are outlined below. 
 
Total Gambling Expenditure 
 
Western Australia’s total gambling expenditure for 2014-15 was $1.5 billion, which is less 
than expenditure in New South Wales, Victoria and Queensland.  This included gambling 
conducted on racing, sports betting, lotteries, gaming machines, casino gaming, keno, 
football pools and other minor gambling. 
 
Jurisdiction Total (million) 

Australian Capital Territory $230.170 

New South Wales $8,911.400 

Northern Territory $1,181.396 

Queensland $3,744.796 

South Australia $1,024.645 

Tasmania $310.576 

Victoria $5,753.740 

Western Australia $1,577.231 
 
Per Capita Expenditure 

When the total expenditure figures listed above are evaluated per capita of adult population, 
Western Australia had the fifth largest gambling expenditure in Australia, despite having the 
fourth largest population of all states and territories. 

Jurisdiction Total 

Australian Capital Territory $762 

New South Wales $1,517.61 

Northern Territory $6,543.63 

Queensland $1,032.53 

South Australia $768.96 

Tasmania $773.94 

Victoria $1,250.17 

Western Australia $794.12 
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Significant Issues Impacting the Commission  
 
Amendments to the Western Australian Gambling Legislation 

Amendments are currently being drafted to the: 

 Racing and Wagering Western Australia Act 2003; 

 Gaming and Wagering Commission Act 1987; 

 Betting Control Act 1954; and 

 Casino Control Act 1984. 

The major objectives of these amendments are to: 

 Implement the recommendations of the Joint Standing Committee on the Review of the 
Racing and Wagering Western Australia Acts; 

 Reduce the regulatory burden on business and the community; 

 Introduce additional consumer protection measures in respect of responsible gambling 
matters; and 

 Align with other Australian jurisdictions the treatment of “bet backs” in relation to 
wagering operations under the racing bets levy scheme. 

 
Changes to Regulations 

 On 2 December 2015, minor amendments were made by the Gaming and Wagering 
Commission Amendment Regulations 2015 that extend the timeframe from seven to 14 
days in which clubs are required to lodge a financial return in respect of a game of two-
up; 

 New fees and charges effective 1 January 2016 were introduced by the Racing, Gaming 
and Liquor Regulations Amendment (Fees and Charges) Regulations 2016; 

 On 1 March 2016, amendments were made by the Racing and Wagering Western 
Australia Amendment Regulations 2016 prescribing reduced payment rates to the Sports 
Wagering Account for the period 1 April 2016 to 31 July 2017; 

 On 1 March 2016, amendments were made by the Racing and Wagering Western 
Australia Amendment Regulations (No. 2) 2016 that enable RWWA and on-course 
totalisators to pay the same minimum dividend for both combined and non-combined 
totalisator pools; 

 As a consequence of the Racing and Wagering Western Australia Amendment 
Regulations (No. 2) 2016, the Betting Control Amendment Regulations (No. 2) 2016 were 
implemented to provide for the same minimum dividends for race clubs utilising the non-
combined pools operated by RWWA;  
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 On 23 March 2016, amendments were made by the Rules of Wagering Amendment 
Rules 2016 allowing RWWA to offer pari-mutuel wagering on American football, baseball, 
basketball, ice hockey, rugby league, rugby union and tennis; and   

 On 13 May 2016, amendments were made by the Betting Control Amendment 
Regulations 2016 to recognise changes in technology whereby patrons attending a 
racecourse who place a bet through their RWWA wagering account using a mobile 
device and a telecommunications network will have their bet treated as an on-course bet.  
Bets placed on-course provide a direct financial benefit to the race clubs. 

 On 24 June 2016, amendments were made by the Racing and Wagering Western 
Australia Amendment Regulations (No. 3) 2016 to provide for the use of current 
technology and support contemporary consumer practices with regard to the storage and 
presentation of tickets. 

New fees and charges effective 1 January 2016 were introduced by the following amendment 
regulations: 

 Casino Control (Burswood Island) (Licensing of Employees) Amendment Regulations 
(No. 2) 2014;   

 Casino Control Amendment Regulations 2014; 

 Betting Control Amendment Regulations (No.2) 2014; 

 Gaming and Wagering Commission Amendment Regulations 2014; 

 Racing and Wagering Western Australia Amendment Regulations (No. 2) 2014; and 

 Racing Penalties (Appeals) Amendment Regulations 2014. 

Attendances at Conferences and Meetings   

Senior officers from the Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor attended the following 
conferences in 2015-16: 

 Deputy Director General Michael Connolly attended the Electronic Gaming Machine 
National Standards working party meeting and Australasian Gaming Expo in Sydney in 
August 2015; 

 Director General Barry Sargeant attended the CEOs Forum and Annual Australasian 
Casino and Gaming Regulators Conference in Sydney in February 2016; 

 Mr Connolly attended meetings in Sydney to review casino audit and inspection 
processes, and risk mitigation strategies in March 2016; and   

 Mr Sargeant attended the Senior Officers Working Group Illegal Offshore Wagering 
Reform meeting in Canberra in June 2016. 
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Activities of the Gaming Community Trust 
 
The Gaming Community Trust is established pursuant to section 109D of the Gaming and 
Wagering Commission Act 1987 with its primary function to give advice and make 
recommendations to the Minister on the application of moneys standing to the credit of the 
Trust Fund for the benefit of the community. 

The money credited to the Trust fund is derived from unclaimed winnings from: 

 The conduct of gaming authorised by the Gaming and Wagering Commission Act 1987 
that has not been claimed within 12 months after the right to be paid has expired; or 

 The conduct of a gaming operation at a licensed casino that has not been claimed within 
12 months after the right to be paid has expired. 

The current membership of the Trust is as follows: 

 Mr Barry Sargeant PSM (Chairman); 

 Mr Joshua Preston (Member); 

 Mr Stephen Wayne Reynolds (Member); 

 Ms Maxine Connolly (Member); 

 Ms Jan Cooper (Member). 

The following grant was issued by the Minister for Racing and Gaming during the reporting 
period: 
 
Scouts WA – the Manjedal Castles Project 
 
In May 2016, the Minister approved a grant of $90,000 to Scouts WA to employ a supervisor 
to oversee the Manjedal Castles Project.   
 

The project is a social enterprise that 
seeks to train and mentor 20 
unemployed youth from the Armadale 
area to erect flat pack castles to be used 
as eco camping accommodation at the 
Scout’s Manjedal Activities Centre 
(MAC) in Armadale.  
 
Additionally, some participants in the 
building project will receive training in 
adventure activities with a focus on 
keeping people safe.  
 

One of the main aims of the project is to provide mentoring and future employment at the 
MAC for some of the project participants as well as offer an eco camping experience to the 
community. 

A castle under construction 
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The following projects were completed during the reporting period: 
 
Scouts WA 
 
In June 2015, the Trust provided a grant of $93,577 to Scouts WA to upgrade the 
kitchen/dining facility at the Stirling District Gilcreek Scout Camp in Albany.  The project was 
completed in January 2016. 
 

  
The new kitchen dining/facility and Gilcreek Scout Camp. 

Recfishwest  

In June 2015, WA Recreational and Sportfishing 
Council (Recfishwest) was successful in its 
application for one-off funding of $13,530 to 
purchase and install an emergency telephone on 
the rocks at the southern end of Salmon Holes 
Beach, west of Albany.    

This is a notoriously dangerous spot for anglers, 
having claimed 13 lives over the past three 
decades. 

Following delivery of the emergency telephone in 
June 2016 the phone was installed by the 
Department of Parks and Wildlife. 

 
 
Epilepsy Action Australia 
 
In April 2012, the Epilepsy Action Australia (EAA) was successful in its application for funding 
of $300,000 over three years from the Trust.  The grant funded the Western Australia 
Regional Outreach Service Program (WAROSP) to provide education and training to people 
with epilepsy, their families and professionals who work with people who have epilepsy in the 
Goldfields, Midwest, Great Southern and Kimberley regions.   
 
The project was completed on 31 August 2015 and enabled the EAA to develop an epilepsy 
service model for the Goldfields, Midwest, Great Southern and Kimberley regions.  Epilepsy 
Action Australia utilised the service model to build awareness, partnership and support 
structures that will ensure the ongoing, sustainable and specialised epilepsy service delivery 
in the four regions. 
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Activities of the Problem Gambling Support 
Services Committee 
 
The Problem Gambling Support Services Committee (PGSSC) addresses the social and 
economic issues associated with problem gambling in Western Australia.   The Committee is 
comprised of representatives from the gambling industry and government agencies.  
 
The Committee’s mission is to promote responsible gambling by providing the community of 
Western Australia with information regarding the impact and consequences of problem 
gambling.  It also supports the provision of support services for those affected by problem 
gambling. 
 
Voluntary contributions are made from each member of the PGSSC and held in a gambling 
support fund administered by the Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor.  
 

As at 30 June 2016, the membership of the PGSSC was: 

 Barry A Sargeant PSM (Chairperson); 

Representatives from:  

 Crown Perth; 

 Racing and Wagering Western Australia; 

 Lotterywest; 

 WA Bookmakers Association; and 

 Department of Local Government and Communities. 

The primary focus of the PGSSC is to fund support services and raise awareness of the 
impacts of problem gambling.  In this regard, the PGSSC funds the following counselling and 
support services: 

 24/7 Problem Gambling Helpline; 

 Gambling Help WA (face-to-face counselling); and 

 Gambling Help Online (online counselling).  
 
The PGSSC also funds awareness campaigns, Responsible Gambling Awareness Week and 
the Gambleaware website. 
 
A total of $857,500 was allocated to fund these counselling and support services in 2015-
2016. 
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Problem Gambling Helpline 

The Problem Gambling Helpline is a free specialist 
telephone counselling and information service for 
Western Australians who are affected by problem 
gambling. 

The Helpline, which is funded by the PGSSC, is 
available 24-hours-per-day, seven-days-per-week to 
provide immediate assistance. 

The helpline is operated by Medibank Health Solutions 
Pty Ltd who also offer interpreter assisted counselling 
and bilingual counsellors on request. 

A Memorandum of Understanding between all states and territories formalises arrangements 
for the national 1800 858 858 number. 

For those people who are unable or unwilling to access face-to-face counselling, the helpline 
provides ongoing telephone counselling (by way of regular booked sessions).  This is 
particularly beneficial for people in regional and remote parts of the State. 

The Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor, on behalf of the Gaming and Wagering 
Commission, is responsible for managing the helpline contract and its services, including: 

 Ensuring adequate qualified counselling staff are provided;

 Providing continued improvements to service delivery;

 Providing on-going analysis of reports and statistics;

 Reporting to the PGSSC on the service delivery; and

 Handling the request for the tender process at the completion of each contract.

During the year, a number of initiatives to improve the service were implemented.  The 
initiatives include a telephone survey, SMS service for callers and a place-in-queue call back 
function. 

The following table provides a three-year summary of the total number of telephone calls 
received from people affected by problem gambling. 

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

Calls to the Helpline 504 696 672 

Of the 672 calls handled by the Helpline over the reporting period, 73 percent (468) were 
male callers aged between 25 and 59.   The helpline received 56 repeat callers. 
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Gambling Help WA 
Gambling Help WA (GHWA) is a free face-to-face counselling service funded by the PGSSC 
for Western Australians affected by problem gambling, their partners and families.  GHWA is 
operated by Centrecare, a not-for-profit social services agency which provides counselling in 
a number of different areas.  

Centrecare has been operating the GHWA 
counselling service for more than 20 years.  In 
2016 Centrecare was awarded preferred service 
provider to operate the service until 30 June 2019. 
The contract is monitored by the Department of 
Racing, Gaming and Liquor and reports are 
provided to the PGSSC. 

Notable achievements by GHWA in the delivery of help services throughout this reporting 
period include:  

1. Development of a new GHWA service model under Centrecare’s Therapeutic Framework.

2. Introduction of a new client record management database – Penelope.

3. Development of a new revocation report process for Crown Perth patrons.

4. Attendance at the 2015 National Australian Gambling Studies Conference in Adelaide.

5. Providing ongoing support, guidance, education and information to Beyond Gambling
recipients including Linkwest and the Langford Aboriginal Association.

6. Provision of 10 training sessions to a total of 85 new Lotterywest agents on identifying
problematic gambling behaviour.

Centrecare registered 695 new clients within the reporting period, 425 clients of which were 
males aged 26+.  The following table provides a three-year summary of the total number of 
counselling sessions held by Centrecare within the reporting period. 

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

Gambling Help WA Sessions 1,551 1,301 1,763 
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National Online Counselling Service 

Gambling Help Online provides an immediate response via online counselling to anyone 
affected by gambling.  The service was launched on 31 August 2009 and is operated by 
Turning Point, a Victorian-based counselling service provider.  The cost of operating the 
service is shared between the states and territories. 

 
The online service complements the range of services available in 
responding to gambling related harm.  It provides Australians with an 
opportunity to access counselling and information services when they are 
unable or reluctant to access face-to-face services in each jurisdiction.   
 
Gambling Help Online is the first service worldwide to provide:  

 
 24-hour availability of live chat and email counselling and support services; 

 Availability of professional counsellors with expertise in problem gambling and online 
services; 

 Integration with state-based 24-hour telephone services and face-to-face counselling; 
and 

 Extensive website content, self help information and links for additional help and 
information. 

The Memorandum of Understanding between all Australian governments for the continuation 
and funding of the Australian Online Gambling Counselling and Support Program is current to 
30 June 2016, with the drafting of a new proposal being prepared for 2016-2017 and beyond.  
The contribution structure is based on each jurisdiction’s share of the 2013-14 national 
gambling expenditure for Western Australia; that is 7.17 percent of the total service cost. 
 
A summary of the clients who visited the webpage between 1 July 2015 and 30 June 2016 is 
shown below: 
 

 
Of the 280 service requests originating from Western Australia, 269 people went on to 
participate in live counselling in 2015-16 compared with 72 in 2014-15.  Of the 269 clients 
who undertook live counselling, 68.6 per cent were male clients and 31.4 per cent female 
clients, with majority aged between 15 and 39. 
  

ONLINE COUNSELLING BY STATE 

 VIC NSW QLD SA TAS WA ACT NT 

Online Requests 1,763 1,547 935 297 93 280 140 50 

Email Support 181 213 121 43 6 21 5 14 

Visits to Information Pages 1,596 1,596 2,859 641 482 1,046 416 620 
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Education and Awareness 

 
www.gambleaware.com.au 

This reporting year commenced with the launch of a more informative, user friendly and 
mobile optimised Gambleaware website which promotes the “When Does the Fun Stop for 
You?” message.  The website provides information on the free help services available, self 
help tools, guidelines, links for self exclusion and videos from people who have experienced 
problem gambling and of professionals who provide support to problem gamblers. 

The website was promoted through online advertising during the following peak gambling 
periods: 

 AFL Finals  6 September 2015 – 4 October 2015 
 Responsible Gambling Awareness Week 2015  12 October 2015 -18 October 2015 
 Spring Carnival  1November 2015 – 15 November 2015 
 Christmas/New Year  20 December 2015 – 16 January 2016 
 Chinese New Year  7 February 2016 – 21 February 2016 
 Commencement of AFL Season  24 March 2016 – 23 April 2016 

The number of people accessing the website increased significantly from 1,677 visits in  
2014-15 to 109,666 visits (new visitors representing 99.3 per cent) during 2015-16. 

Noticeable increases to people accessing the three help services was also sighted during the 
Christmas/New Year, Chinese New Year and Spring Carnival phases of the campaign. 

 

Responsible Gambling Awareness Week was held between 12 and 18 October 2015 and 
was aligned with the Spring Racing Carnival – which also promoted Mental Health Week.  
The key theme was in line with the advertising campaign “When Does the Fun Stop for You?” 
and emphasised that when it comes to gambling, balance and control is the key to making 
sure it remains an enjoyable pastime, not a problem.  

A number of initiatives were undertaken in partnership with key stakeholders throughout the 
week promoting responsible gambling, including online and social media advertising, launch 
on the Crown Perth gaming floor, a feature race at Gloucester Park and promotion on printed 
lottery tickets throughout the week. 

The helpline received 60 target calls during the month of October, 55 new clients were signed 
up for face-to-face counselling and 14 contacts were made with Gambling Help Online. 
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Gambling Research Australia  

The Problem Gambling Support Services Committee provided 
annual funding to Gambling Research Australia (GRA) to 
initiate and manage a national gambling research program 
structured around the following five research priority areas: 

 Helping individuals set their limits including access to cash 
and pre-commitment; 

 Responsible gambling environments; 
 Gaming machine standards – developing better consumer 

protection; 
 A preventative and early intervention strategy targeted at 

those at risk of problem gambling; and 
 Development of harm minimisation measures for 

interactive gambling. 
 

While the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the 
Commonwealth, states and territories expired on  
30 June 2014, arrangements have enabled GRA to complete 
reports commissioned prior to the expiry of the MOU. During 2015-16 GRA published the 
following reports: 

 
The Use of Social Media in Gambling 

This study aimed to identify and describe the availability and promotion of gambling and 
social casino game opportunities via social media, whether there has been a transition 
between social casino game and play; and gambling and the potential for social media to be 
used to promote responsible gambling. 

Impact of Structural Characteristics of Electronic Gaming Machines (EGMs) 

The purpose of this study was to identify structural characteristics of EGMs within Australia 
and to examine how different structural characteristics affect gambling behaviour (including 
how EGM structural characteristics affect problem gamblers). 

Responsible Gambling and Casinos 

The key objective of this study was to explore the relationship between casinos and local 
gamblers, their regulatory environment and the effect of promotional and responsible 
gambling initiatives. 

The Role of Loyalty Programs in Gambling 

The purpose of this study was to understand current knowledge regarding the impact of 
loyalty programs (LPs), and harvest views regarding whether these programs are likely to 
impact on a person’s gambling behaviours and attitudes.  A study was also undertaken on 
Australians with some interest in playing EGMs to investigate associations between LP status 
and gambling behaviours, and problem gambling risk levels over time. 

The GRA website, www.gamblingresearch.org.au, contains a full catalogue of reports 
published by GRA. 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

Financial Statements 
 
The aim of these financial statements is to inform the Parliament and other interested parties, 
not only of what the Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia has achieved 
during the financial year, but also of the reasons behind those achievements. 
 
Certification of Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2016 

The accompanying financial statements of the Gaming and Wagering Commission of 
Western Australia have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Financial 
Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial 
transactions for the financial year ending 30 June 2016 and the financial position as at 
30 June 2016. 

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the 
particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.  

 
 

 
 

 
 

Terry Ng Barry A Sargeant PSM Colleen Hayward AM 
Chief Finance Officer Chairperson Member 
 Gaming and Wagering 

Commission of Western 
Australia 

Gaming and Wagering 
Commission of Western 
Australia 

 
13 September 2016 

 
13 September 2016 

 
13 September 2016 

 
 
 

  

Page 30

Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia 
Annual Report 2015-2016



Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2016

   
 Note 2016 2015
 $ $
 

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Board members expenses 16 77,643 80,507

Superannuation 16 7,376 7,648

Expenses related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts 4 56,539,586 47,226,035

Services and contract fees  4,877,797 5,041,972

Total cost of services 61,502,402 52,356,162

Income
Revenue  

Fees and charges 5 4,260,919 4,190,114

Revenues related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts 6 53,256,003 48,715,891

Interest revenue 7 11,244 44,183

Total Revenue 57,528,166 52,950,188

NET COST OF SERVICES 14 3,974,236 (594,026)       

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD (3,974,236)        594,026

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Total other comprehensive income 0 0

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (3,974,236)        594,026

 

 

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2016

  
Note 2016 2015

$ $

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8 447,934 261,161

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 9 3,511,922 6,778,091
Receivables 10 455,095 1,337,767

Inventories 11 6,675 3,625

Total Current Assets 4,421,626 8,380,644

TOTAL ASSETS 4,421,626 8,380,644

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Payables 12 291,265 276,047

Total Current Liabilities 291,265 276,047

TOTAL LIABILITIES 291,265 276,047

NET ASSETS 4,130,361 8,104,597

EQUITY 13  

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)  4,130,361 8,104,597

TOTAL EQUITY 4,130,361 8,104,597

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2016

Accumulated
Contributed surplus/  

Note equity Reserves (deficit) Total equity
$ $ $ $

Balance at July 2014 13 0 0 7,510,571 7,510,571

Changes in accounting policy or correction of 0 0 0 0
prior period errors

Restated balance at 1 July 2014  0 0 7,510,571 7,510,571

Surplus/(deficit) 0 0 594,026 594,026
Other comprehensive income 0 0 0 0

Total comprehensive income for the period 0 0 594,026 594,026

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:   
Other contributions by owners 0 0 0 0
Distributions to owners 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0

Balance at 30 June 2015 0 0 8,104,597 8,104,597

Balance at 1 July 2015  0 0 8,104,597 8,104,597

Surplus/(deficit) 0 0 (3,974,236)     (3,974,236)      
Other comprehensive income 0 0 0 0

Total comprehensive income for the period 0 0 (3,974,236)     (3,974,236)      

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:   
Other contributions by owners 0 0 0 0
Distributions to owners 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0

Balance at 30 June 2016 0 0 4,130,361 4,130,361

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2016

  
Note 2016 2015

$ $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Board members fees (77,643)                  (82,735)               
Superannuation (7,376)                    (7,860)                 
Payments related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts (57,139,585)           (47,227,218)        

Services and contract fees (4,001,270)             (6,638,897)          

GST payments on purchases (638,714)                (411,967)             
GST payments to taxation authority (4,953,637)             (4,211,720)          

Receipts
Fees and charges 4,252,818 4,198,145
Receipts related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts 53,873,416 48,711,186
Interest received 14,762 55,247
GST receipts on sales 4,936,723 4,331,399

GST receipts from taxation authority 661,110 366,283

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 14 (3,079,396)             (918,137)             

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,079,396)             (918,137)             

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 7,039,252 7,957,389

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 14 3,959,856 7,039,252

   

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016

 Note 1. Australian Accounting Standards
General

 Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) General statement

 

 
 
(b) Basis of preparation
 

 

(c) Reporting entity

(d) Contributed equity

The Commission’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2016 have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.  The term 
‘Australian Accounting Standards’ includes Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standard Board (AASB).  
 
The Commission has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from their operative dates.  
 
Early adoption of standards 
 
The Commission cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards 
and Other Pronouncements.  Partial exemption permitting early adoption of AASB 2015-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Fair Value 
Disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities has been granted.  Aside from AASB 2015-7, there has been no early adoption of any other Australian 
Accounting Standards that have been issued or amended (but not operative) by the Commission for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2016.   

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention. 
 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless 
otherwise stated. 
 
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest dollar. 
 
 

        

The Commission is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the 
Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer's instructions.  Several of 
these are modified by the Treasurer's instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording. 
   
The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer's instructions impose legislative provisions that govern the preparation of financial statements and take 
precedence over Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB. 
  
Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of that modification and the resulting 
financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 

The reporting entity comprises the Commission only. 
 
Administered revenues are not integral to the Commission in carrying out its functions and are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements (Note 18).   

AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions, other 
than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or 
prior to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions.  Capital appropriations have been designated as contributions by owners by 
TI 955 Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities and have been credited directly to Contributed equity.  
  
The transfer of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, are designated as contributions by 
owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal.  
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Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016

(e) Income

(f) Services Performed for the Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia by the  
Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor

(g) Financial instruments

The Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor provides support to the Commission to enable the Commission to carry out its objectives. This support 
comprises most of the amount reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income under 'Services and contract fees'. These charges are in the nature of 
salaries and administration costs in providing these support services. 
 
Recoups from the Commission to the Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor are made on a monthly basis under a net appropriation determination. 
 

In addition to cash, the Commission has two categories of financial instrument: 
 
* Receivables; and 
* Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 
 
Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes: 
 
* Financial Assets 
   - Cash and cash equivalents 
   - Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
   - Receivables 
 
* Financial Liabilities 
   - Payables 
 
Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction cost or the face value.  Subsequent 
measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
 
The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent 
measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material. 
 

Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. This represents income received pursuant to the Gaming and 
Wagering Commission Act 1987, Casino Control Act 1984, and Betting Control Act 1954, net of refunds. It includes the annual casino licence fee, income from 
community gaming, and wagering activities. 
 
In 2007, a change in accounting policy was adopted to include the trust fund activities in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  Trust fund activities 
(Special Purpose Account) is recognised on cash basis. 
 
Security deposits previously shown as current asset and liability are no longer recognised in the Statement of Financial Position of the Commission.  
 
Other trust funds previously included in the current liabilities of the Commission are not recognised since it is established that there is no present obligation as 
at the reporting period. 

Fees and charges 
Revenue is recognised when the transaction or event giving rise to the revenue occurs.  

Provision of services 
Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction. 

Sale of goods 
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the purchaser and 
can be measured reliably. 

Interest 
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues. 

Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows: 

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions 
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Commission obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions, usually when cash is received. 
  
Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised when a 
fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated. 
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Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

(i) Inventories

(j) Receivables  

(k) Payables

(l) Employee Benefits

(m) Superannuation expense

(n) Comparative figures

Annual and Long Service Leave 
The Commission does not employ staff.  Section 18 of the Gaming and Wagering Commission Act 1987 provides for the Commission to utilise the staff and 
facilities of the Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor.  The cost of the services provided by the Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor is recouped 
from the Commission as a service fee. Accordingly, provisions have not been made for annual and long service leave. 
 
Superannuation 
The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other fund providers administer public sector superannuation arrangements in Western 
Australia in accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees vary according to 
commencement and implementation dates. 
 
Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new members since 1987, or the Gold State 
Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to new members since 1995. 
 
Board members of the Commission commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became 
non-contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Board members commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became 
members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS).  From 30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees have been able to 
choose their preferred superannuation fund provider. The Commission makes contributions to GESB or other fund providers on behalf of employees in 
compliance with the Commonwealth Government's Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.  Contributions to these accumulation schemes 
extinguish the Commission's liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not members of the Pension Scheme or GSS. 
 
The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government reporting. However, it is a defined contribution plan for agency 
purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the Commission to GESB extinguishes the agency's obligations to the related 
superannuation liability. 
 
The Commission has no liabilities under the Pension Scheme or the GSS. The liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer 
benefits attributable to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS obligations are funded by 
concurrent contributions made by the Commission to the GESB.  
 
The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and is recouped from the Treasurer for the employer’s share. 
 

Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability of 
receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account. The 
allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the Commission will not be able to collect the 
debts. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days. 

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the current financial year. 

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand. 
 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are assigned by the method most appropriate for each particular class of 
inventory, with the majority being measured on a first in first out basis. 

Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Commission becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or 
services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is generally within 30 days. 

Superannuation expense is recognised in the profit or loss of the Statement of Comprehensive Income and comprises employer contributions paid to the GSS 
(concurrent contributions), WSS, the GESBS, and other superannuation funds. 
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 Note 3. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates

AASB 2013-9

AASB 2014-8

AASB 2015-3

AASB 2015-7

  
  

 
 

 Operative for
reporting periods

 beginning on/after  

AASB 9  
 
 

AASB 15  
 
 

AASB 16  
 
 

                         

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard 
 
The Commission has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective, or adopted, for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2015 that 
impacted on the Commission. 

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative 
 
The Commission cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and 
Other Pronouncements or by an exemption from TI 1101. By virtue of a limited exemption, the Commission has early adopted AASB 2015-7 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities. Where applicable, the Commission plans to apply the following Australian 
Accounting Standards from their application date. 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments 
 
Part C of this Standard defers the application of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017. The application date of AASB 9 was subsequently deferred to 1 January 2018 
by AASB 2014-1. The Commission has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of AASB 9. 
 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014) – Application of AASB 9 (December 2009) and AASB 9 
(December 2010) [AASB 9 (2009 & 2010)] 
 
This Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2009) and AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2010), arising from 
the issuance of AASB 9 Financial Instruments in December 2014. The Commission has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of AASB 
9. 
 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Withdrawal of AASB 1031 Materiality 
 
This Standard completes the withdrawal of references to AASB 1031 in all Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, allowing that Standard to 
effectively be withdrawn. There is no financial impact. 
 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities [AASB 13] 
 
This Standard relieves not-for-profit public sector entities from the reporting burden associated with various disclosures required by AASB 13 for assets 
within the scope of AASB 116 that are held primarily for their current service potential rather than to generate future net cash inflows. It has no financial 
impact. 

                         

Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
 
This Standard establishes the principles that the Commission shall apply to report useful information to users of financial 
statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a 
customer. The Commission has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 
 

1 Jan 2018 

                         

Leases 
 
This Standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for 
all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. The Commission has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 
 

1 Jan 2019 

                         

                         

Financial Instruments 
 
This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introducing a number of 
changes to accounting treatments. 
 
The mandatory application date of this Standard is currently 1 January 2018 after being amended by AASB 2012-6, 
AASB 2013-9, and AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards. The Commission has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 
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 Operative for
reporting periods

 beginning on/after  

AASB 1057  
 
 

 
AASB 2010-7  

 
 

AASB 2014-1  
 
 

AASB 2014-3  
 
 

 
AASB 2014-4  

 
 

 
AASB 2014-5  

 
 

 
AASB 2014-7  

 
 

 
AASB 2014-9  

 
 

                         

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
 
Part E of this Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 and consequential amendments to other Standards. It has not yet 
been assessed by the Commission to determine the application or potential impact of the Standard. 
 
 

1 Jan 2018 

                         

                         

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 
108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127] 
 
This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a 
result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010.  
 
The mandatory application date of this Standard has been amended by AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1 to 1 January 
2018. The Commission has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 
  
 
 

1 Jan 2018 

                         

Application of Australian Accounting Standards 
 
This Standard lists the application paragraphs for each other Standard (and Interpretation), grouped where they are the 
same. There is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2016 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements [AASB 1, 127 & 128] 
 
This Standard amends AASB 127, and consequentially amends AASB 1 and AASB 128, to allow entities to use the equity 
method of accounting for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. 
The Commission has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 
 
 

1 Jan 2016 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation 
[AASB 116 & 138] 
 
The adoption of this Standard has no financial impact for the Commission as depreciation and amortisation is not 
determined by reference to revenue generation, but by reference to consumption of future economic benefits. 
 

1 Jan 2016 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations [AASB 1 & 
11] 
 
The Commission establishes Joint Operations in pursuit of its objectives and does not routinely acquire interests in Joint 
Operations. Therefore, there is no financial impact on application of the Standard. 
 

1 Jan 2016 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014) 
 
This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (including Interpretations) 
arising from the issuance of AASB 9 (December 2014). The Commission has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard. 
  

1 Jan 2018 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15 
 
This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (including Interpretations) 
arising from the issuance of AASB 15.  The mandatory application date of this Standard has been amended by AASB 
2015-8 to 1 January 2018. The Commission has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 
  

1 Jan 2018 

1 Jan 2016 
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 Operative for
reporting periods

 beginning on/after  
 

AASB 2014-10  
 
 

AASB 2015-1  
 
 

 
AASB 2015-2  

 
 

AASB 2015-6  
 
 

AASB 2015-8  
 
 

AASB 2015-10  
 
 

AASB 2016-2  
 
 

AASB 2016-3  
 
 

AASB 2016-4  
 
 

 

                         

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate 
or Joint Venture [AASB 10 & 128] 
 
This Standard amends AASB 10 and AASB 128 to address an inconsistency between the requirements in AASB 10 and 
those in AASB 128 (August 2011), in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate 
or joint venture. The Commission has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 
 

1 Jan 2016 

1 Jan 2016 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 101 [AASB 7, 101, 134 & 
1049] 
 
This Standard amends AASB 101 to provide clarification regarding the disclosure requirements in AASB 101. Specifically, 
the Standard proposes narrow-focus amendments to address some of the concerns expressed about existing presentation 
and disclosure requirements and to ensure entities are able to use judgement when applying a Standard in determining 
what information to disclose in their financial statements. There is no financial impact.  
 

1 Jan 2016 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements to Australian Accounting Standards 2012–2014 
Cycle [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 11, 110, 119, 121, 133, 134, 137 & 140] 
 
These amendments arise from the issuance of International Financial Reporting Standard Annual Improvements to IFRSs 
2012–2014 Cycle in September 2014, and editorial corrections. The Commission has not yet determined the application or 
the potential impact of the Standard. 
 

1 Jan 2016 

1 Jan 2016 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Related Party Disclosures to Not-for-Profit Public Sector 
Entities [AASB 10, 124 & 1049] 
 
The amendments extend the scope of AASB 124 to include application by not-for-profit public sector entities. 
Implementation guidance is included to assist application of the Standard by not-for-profit public sector entities. There is no 
financial impact. 

1 Jul 2016 

1 Jan 2016 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Effective Date of AASB 15 
 
This Standard amends the mandatory effective date (application date) of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers so that AASB 15 is required to be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 
instead of 1 January 2017. The Commission has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of AASB 15. 
 
 

1 Jan 2017 

1 Jan 2016 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Effective Date of Amendments to AASB 10 & 128 
 
This Standard defers the mandatory effective date (application date) of amendments to AASB 10 & 128 that were originally 
made in AASB 2014-10 so that the amendments are required to be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018 instead of 1 January 2016. The Commission has not yet determined the application or the potential 
impact of AASB 2014-10. 

1 Jan 2016 

1 Jan 2016 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 107 
 
This Standard amends AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows (August 2015) to require disclosures that enable users of 
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from 
cash flows and non-cash changes. There is no financial impact. 
  

1 Jan 2017 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Clarifications to AASB 15 
 
This Standard clarifies identifying performance obligations, principal versus agent considerations, timing of recognising 
revenue from granting a licence, and, provides further transitional provisions to AASB 15. The Commission has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact. 
 
 

1 Jan 2018 

1 Jan 2016 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Recoverable Amount of Non-Cash-Generating Specialised Assets of 
Not-for-Profit Entities 
 
This Standard clarifies that the recoverable amount of primarily non-cash-generating assets of not-for-profit entities, which 
are typically specialised in nature and held for continuing use of their service capacity, is expected to be materially the 
same as fair value determined under AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. The Commission has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact. 
  

1 Jan 2017 
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 Note 4. Expenses related to Restricted Cash and Special Purpose Accounts
2016 2015

$ $
Grant payments 7,152,762 4,742,883
Racing Bets Levy payment to Racing and Wagering Western Australia 48,364,049 42,234,975
Other services and contract fees - relates to restricted cash and special purpose accounts 1,022,775 248,177

56,539,586 47,226,035

 Note 5. Fees and charges
2016 2015

$ $
Casino licence fees 2,779,336 2,732,841
Casino employee licence fees 108,469 125,144
Betting related fees 76,308 100,648
Community gaming 774,327 740,563
Gaming infringement 1,966 2,918
Recoups for services provided 520,513 488,000

4,260,919 4,190,114

 Note 6. Revenues related to Restricted Cash and Special Purpose Accounts
2016 2015

$ $
Contributions 4,845,341 6,197,090
Racing Bets Levy 48,254,418 42,305,282
Interest revenue - relates to restricted cash and special purpose accounts 156,244 213,519

53,256,003 48,715,891

 Note 7. Interest revenue
2016 2015

$ $
Interest revenue 
Commonwealth Bank of Australia 11,244 44,183

 

 Note 8. Cash and cash equivalents
2016 2015

$ $
Cash and cash equivalents are represented by funds held at the 447,934 261,161
Commonwealth Bank of Australia
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 Note 9. Restricted cash and cash equivalents
2016 2015

$ $
(a) Restricted Cash
Problem Gambling Support Services 
Balance at start of period 1,345,677 554,737
Receipts 642,733 1,218,289
Payments  (1,191,057)            (427,349)          
Balance at end of period 797,353 1,345,677

(b) Special Purpose Account
Gaming Community Trust Fund (i)

Balance at start of period 1,427,482 1,354,909
Receipts 299,293 267,056
Payments  (222,745) (194,483)
Balance at end of period 1,504,030 1,427,482

 

(c) Special Purpose Account
Sports Wagering Account (i)

Balance at start of period 3,657,995 3,107,576
Receipts 4,628,861 4,852,440
Payments  (7,313,673)            (4,302,021)       
Balance at end of period 973,183 3,657,995

 

(d) Special Purpose Account
Racing Bets Levy Account (i)

Balance at start of period  346,937 276,901
Receipts 48,302,529 42,373,401
Payments  (48,412,110)          (42,303,365)     
Balance at end of period 237,356 346,937

 

Total restricted cash and cash equivalents as per Statement of Financial Position 3,511,922 6,778,091

                    

The Sports Wagering Account holds monies paid by Racing and Wagering Western Australia under section 104 
or 107 of the Racing and Wagering Western Australia Act, 2003 and monies held by the Commission relating to 
bookmakers' betting levy received under section 15 of the Betting Control Act 1954. These monies are held in 
trust until distributed as directed by the Minister for Sport and Recreation, pursuant to section 110A of the Gaming 
and Wagering Commission Act 1987. 
 

The Problem Gambling Support Services receive contributions from Burswood International Resort Casino, WA 
Bookmakers' Association, Racing and Wagering Western Australia, Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor, 
and the Commission. The fund is used to provide services for problem gamblers and to undertake problem 
gambling related research. 

The Racing Bets Levy Account receives monies under section 14A of the Betting Control Act 1954. This Account 
is to be applied for the purposes of making payments to the Western Australian racing industry under the Betting 
Control Act, and outgoings and expenses incurred by the Commission in administering the Account.  
 

The Gaming Community Trust Fund comprises winnings from gaming activities that have remained 
unclaimed for more than 14 months, plus interest income. The fund is held for purposes as recommended 
by the Trust, and approved by the Minister, for the benefit of the community pursuant to section 109C (2) 
of the Gaming and Wagering Commission Act 1987.  
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2016 2015
$ $

(e) Security Deposits (ii)

Balance at start of period 1,197,510 1,410,848
Receipts 688,270 1,008,146
Payments  (633,592)               (1,221,484)       
Balance at end of period 1,252,188 1,197,510

 

  

(i) Established under section 16(1)(b) of FMA.
(ii) Established under section 16(1)(c) of FMA.

 Note 10. Receivables
2016 2015

$ $
Current
Receivables  100,000 0
Accrued revenue 37,765 50,627
Prepayments 317,330 1,287,140
Total current 455,095 1,337,767

 
 

 

 Note 11. Inventories
2016 2015

$ $
Current
Betting tickets 2,145 834
Betting ledgers 4,530 2,791
Total current 6,675 3,625

 Note 12. Payables
2016 2015

$ $
Current
Trade payables 0 105
Other payables 12,338 2,497
GST payable 278,927 273,445
Total current 291,265 276,047

                    

The Commission does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as security for receivables. 

Security deposits represent security deposits received from bookmakers under section 11E of the Betting 
Control Act 1954, and received from organisations conducting lotteries/raffles as a guarantee of the 
distribution of prizes, plus interest income. 
 
As stated in note 2(e), following a change in accounting policy, security deposits are no longer recognised 
on the Statement of Financial Position as asset and liability of the Commission. 
 

The Commission had a significant exposure to the Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor in 2016. 
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 Note 13. Equity

Contributed equity
2016 2015

$ $
Balance at start of period 0 0

Contributions by owners
Transfer of net assets from other agencies 0 0

Total contributions by owners 0 0

Distributions to owners
Transfer of net assets to other agencies 0 0

Total distributions to owners 0 0

Balance at end of period 0 0

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
2016 2015

$ $
Balance at start of period 8,104,597 7,510,571
Result for the period (3,974,236)            594,026

Balance at end of period 4,130,361 8,104,597

Total Equity at end of period 4,130,361 8,104,597

 Note 14. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
Reconciliation of cash

2016 2015
$ $

Cash and cash equivalents 447,934 261,161
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (note 9 'Restricted cash and cash equivalents' ) 3,511,922 6,778,091

3,959,856 7,039,252

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities
2016 2015

$ $
Net cost of services (3,974,236)            594,026

(Increase)/decrease in assets
Receivables (a)                  882,672 (1,272,712)       
Inventories (3,050)                    1,607

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
Payables (a)                      9,736           (315,067)

Net GST receipts/(payments) (b)                      5,481 73,995
Change in GST in receivables/payables (c)                              1 14
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities  (3,079,396)            (918,137)

                    

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as 
follows: 

The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in the Commission on behalf of the community. Equity represents the residual interest 
in the net assets of the Commission.  

(a) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase of non-        
      current assets are not included in these items as they do not form part of the reconciling items. 
(b) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions. 
(c) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables. 
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Note 15. Explanatory statement
 

 
 

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Variance Variance
 between between actual

 Variance Estimate Actual Actual estimate and results for 2016
 Note 2016 2016 2015 actual and 2015
 $ $ $ $ $
 

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Board members expenses  100,000 77,643 80,507 (22,357)                (2,864)                     

Superannuation  9,500 7,376 7,648 (2,124)                  (272)                        

Expenses related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts 1, A 0 56,539,586 47,226,035 56,539,586 9,313,551

Services and contract fees  4,979,500 4,877,797 5,041,972 (101,703)              (164,175)                 

Total cost of services 5,089,000 61,502,402 52,356,162 56,413,402 9,146,240

Income  

Revenue   

Fees and charges  4,173,800 4,260,919 4,190,114 87,119 70,805

Revenues related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts 2, B 0 53,256,003 48,715,891 53,256,003 4,540,112

Interest revenue  59,200 11,244 44,183 (47,956)                (32,939)                   

Total Revenue 4,233,000 57,528,166 52,950,188 53,295,166 4,577,978

NET COST OF SERVICES 856,000 3,974,236 (594,026)              3,118,236 4,568,262

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD (856,000)           (3,974,236)           594,026 (3,118,236)           (4,568,262)              

 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  

Total other comprehensive income  0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (856,000)           (3,974,236)           594,026 (3,118,236)           (4,568,262)              

All variances between estimates (original budget) and actual results for 2016, and between the actual results for 2016 and 2015 are shown below.  Narratives are provided for key variations 
selected from observed major variances, which are generally greater than: 
 
* 5% and $101,000 for the Statements of Comprehensive Income and Cash Flows; and 
* 5% and $165,000 for the Statement of Financial Position. 
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Note 15. Explanatory statement (contd)

Statement of Financial Position

Variance Variance
 between between actual

Variance Estimate Actual Actual estimate and results for 2016
Note 2016 2016 2015 actual and 2015

$ $ $ $ $

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3, C 838,770 447,934 261,161 (390,836)          186,773                   

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 4, D 7,384,589 3,511,922 6,778,091 (3,872,667)       (3,266,169)               

Receivables 5, E 67,607 455,095 1,337,767 387,488 (882,672)                  

Inventories  4,819 6,675 3,625 1,856 3,050                       

Total Current Assets  8,295,785 4,421,626 8,380,644 (3,874,159)       (3,959,018)               

TOTAL ASSETS 8,295,785 4,421,626 8,380,644 (3,874,159)       (3,959,018)               
 
 

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Payables 6 547,690 291,265 276,047 (256,425)          15,218                     

Total Current Liabilities 547,690 291,265 276,047 (256,425)          15,218                     
 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 547,690 291,265 276,047 (256,425)          15,218                     

NET ASSETS  7,748,095 4,130,361 8,104,597 (3,617,734)       (3,974,236)               
 
 

EQUITY  

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 7,748,095 4,130,361 8,104,597 (3,617,734)       (3,974,236)               
 

TOTAL EQUITY 7,748,095 4,130,361 8,104,597 (3,617,734)       (3,974,236)               
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Note 15. Explanatory statement (contd)

Statement of Cash Flows
 

Variance Variance
 between between actual

Variance Estimate Actual Actual estimate and results for 2016
Note 2016 2016 2015 actual and 2015

$ $ $ $ $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Board members fees  (100,000)                   (77,643)                     (82,735)                22,357 5,092

Superannuation  (9,500)                       (7,376)                       (7,860)                  2,124 484

Payments related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts 7, F 0 (57,139,585)              (47,227,218)         (57,139,585)                (9,912,367)                    

Services and contract fees 8, G (4,979,500)                (4,001,270)                (6,638,897)           978,230 2,637,627

GST payments on purchases 9, H 0 (638,714)                   (411,967)              (638,714)                     (226,747)                       

GST payments to taxation authority 10, I 0 (4,953,637)                (4,211,720)           (4,953,637)                  (741,917)                       

Receipts
Fees and charges  4,173,800 4,252,818 4,198,145 79,018 54,673

Receipts related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts 11, J 0 53,873,416 48,711,186 53,873,416 5,162,230

Interest received  59,200 14,762 55,247 (44,438)                       (40,485)                         

GST receipts on sales 12, K 0 4,936,723 4,331,399 4,936,723 605,324

GST receipts from taxation authority 13, L 0 661,110 366,283 661,110 294,827

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (856,000)                   (3,079,396)                (918,137)              (2,223,396)                  (2,161,259)                    

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (856,000)                   (3,079,396)                (918,137)              (2,223,396)                  (2,161,259)                    
 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period  9,079,359 7,039,252 7,957,389 (2,040,107)                  (918,137)                       

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 8,223,359 3,959,856 7,039,252 (4,263,503)                  (3,079,396)                    
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Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016

Note 15. Explanatory statement (contd)

 
Major Estimate and Actual (2016) Variance Narratives 

1)
 

2)
 

3)
 

4)
 

5)
 

6)
 

7)
 

8)
 

 
 
 

 
 

No budget estimates are prepared for the Expenses related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts since their business activities are 
mainly driven from external sources.  

No budget estimates are prepared for the Revenues related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts since their business activities are 
mainly driven from external sources.  

Cash and cash equivalents are lower than the estimates by $390,836 (47%) due mainly to a prepayment of $317,330 related to a recoupment 
for the month July 2016. 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent the special purpose accounts, are lower than the estimates by $3.873 million (52%) due to the 
decrease in the net cash inflows for the trust account activities.  

Receivables exceed the estimates by $387,488 (573%) due to the explanation in note (3).  
  

Payables are lower than the estimates by $256,425 (47%) due mainly to the full settlement of the annual recoupment charges.  

No budget estimates are prepared for the Payments related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts since their business activities are 
mainly driven from external sources.  

Payments for services and contract fees are lower than the estimates by $978,230 (20%), due mainly to a significant prepayment amount 
effected in June 2015. 
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Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016

Note 15. Explanatory statement (contd)

Major Estimate and Actual (2016) Variance Narratives (contd)

9)
 

10)
 

11)
 

12)
 

13)
 

No budget estimates are prepared for the GST payments on purchases. 

No budget estimates are prepared for the GST payments to taxation authority. 

No budget estimates are prepared for the Receipts related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts since their business activities are 
mainly driven from external sources.   

No budget estimates are prepared for the GST receipts on sales. 

No budget estimates are prepared for the GST receipts from taxation authority. 
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Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016

Note 15. Explanatory statement (contd)

Major Actual (2016) and Comparative (2015) Variance Narratives 

A)
 

B)
 

C)
 

D)
 

E)
 

F)
 

G)
 

 
 

 
 

Expenses related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts exceed 2015 by $9.314 million (20%) due mainly to an increases in the 
Racing Bets Levy (by $6.109 million), Problem Gambling support Services (by $0.764 million), and Sports Wagering Account (by $3.012 
million). 

Revenues related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts exceed 2015 by $4.540 million (9%), due mainly to increase in the revenue 
of Racing Bets Levy (by $5.929 million). 

Cash and cash equivalents in 2015 are lower than 2016 by $186,773 (72%) due mainly to the first quarter 2015-16 payment in advance 
($1.236 million).  

Restricted cash and cash equivalents are lower than 2015 by $3.266 million (48%) due to the explanation in note (4).  

Receivables are lower than 2015 by $882,672 (66%) due to reduced prepayments made in 2016. 

Payments related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts exceed 2015 by $9.912 million (21%) due mainly to the explanation in note 
(A).  

Payments for services and contract fees were lower than 2015 by $2.638 million (40%), due mainly to the explanation in note (C).  
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Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016

Note 15. Explanatory statement (contd)

Major Actual (2016) and Comparative (2015) Variance Narratives (contd)

H)
 

I)
 

J)
 

K)
 

L)
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

GST payments on purchases exceed 2015 by $226,747 (55%), due mainly to the explanation in note (F).  
  

GST payments to taxation authority exceed 2015 by $741,917 (18%), due mainly to an increase in the Racing Bets Levy payments.  

Receipts related to restricted cash and special purpose accounts exceed 2015 by $5.162 million (11%) due to the explanation in note (B).  

GST receipts on sales exceed 2015 by $605,324 (14%) due to the explanation in note (J).  

GST receipts from taxation authority exceed 2015 by $294,827 (80%) due mainly to the explanation in note (F).  
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Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016

 Note 16. Remuneration of members of the accountable authority

 2016 2015
  

Remuneration Band ($)
         0 - 10,000 1 1
 10,001 - 20,000 5 5

  
$ $

  Base remuneration and superannuation 85,019 88,155
  Other benefits 0 0

The total remuneration of members of the accountable authority 85,019 88,155
(The Chairman does not receive remuneration.)

 Note 17. Remuneration of auditor
  

2016 2015
$ $

Auditing the accounts, controls, financial statements and key performance indicators 15,200 14,850

 

 Note 18. Administered transactions
 2016 2015
 $ $

Administered revenue
(a) Video lottery terminals 136,188 116,181

 

(b) Continuing lottery levy 108,265 166,905

                 
 

The number of members of the accountable authority, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial 
year, fall within the following bands are: 

                    

Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect of the audit for the current financial year is as follows: 

The Commission collects 3.25% of the revenue collected by a Video Lottery Terminal under regulation 18AA of 
the Gaming and Wagering Commission Regulations 1988. The Commission retains 1% to cover the cost of 
administering Video Lottery Terminals, the remaining 2.25% is collected  on behalf of the Government and paid 
into the Consolidated Fund. The amount reported here as administered revenue represents Government's 2.25% 
share of this income.  

The Commission collects a levy of 3.25% of the face value of Continuing Lottery tickets sold by licensed 
suppliers. The Commission retains 1% as controlled revenue and remits the remaining 2.25% to the 
Consolidated Fund. The amount reported here as administered revenue represents Government's 2.25% 
share of this income.  

 

     

Total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Commission in respect of members of the accountable authority. 
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Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016

 Note 19. Financial instruments
(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies

  

(b) Categories of financial instruments

 2016 2015
 $ $

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 447,934 261,161
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,511,922 6,778,091
Receivables (a) 455,095 1,337,767

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (b) 12,338 2,602

Financial instruments held by the Commission are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, receivables, and payables.  
The Commission has limited exposure to financial risks.  The Commission's overall risk management program focuses on managing the risks 
identified below. 

Credit risk 
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Commission's receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to 
the Commission.   
 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying 
amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment as shown in the table at note 19(c) ‘Financial instruments disclosures’ and note 10 
‘Receivables’. 
 
Credit risk associated with the Commission's financial assets is minimal because the Commission trades only with recognised, creditworthy third 
parties.  The Commission has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit 
history.  In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Commission’s exposure to bad debts is minimal.  
At the end of the reporting period there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. 

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk arises when the Commission is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. 
 
The Commission is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business.  
  
The Commission has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to 
meet its commitments. 

Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Commission's income or the 
value of its holdings of financial instruments.  The Commission does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks. 
Other than as detailed in the interest rate sensitivity analysis table at Note 19(c), the Commission has no borrowings and its exposure to market risk 
for changes in interest rates relates primarily to cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash which are interest bearing. 

The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are: 

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable). 
(b) The amount of payables excludes GST payable to the ATO (statutory payable). 
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2016
 

Note 19. (c) Financial instrument disclosures

 Ageing analysis of financial assets

 Past due but not impaired
Not past due       

Carrying and not   3 months to More than 5 Impaired financial
Amount impaired Up to 1 month 1-3 months 1 year 1-5 years years assets

 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
2016
Cash and cash equivalents 447,934 447,934  
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,511,922 3,511,922  
Receivables (a) 455,095 455,095  
 4,414,951 3,959,856 455,095 0 0 0 0 0

2015
Cash and cash equivalents 261,161 261,161  
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 6,778,091 6,778,091  
Receivables (a) 1,337,767 1,337,767   
 8,377,019 7,039,252 1,337,767 0 0 0 0 0

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

Credit risk 
 
The following table discloses the Commission's maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Commission's maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the 
reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The 
table is based on information provided to senior management of the Commission. 
 
The Commission does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2016
 

Note 19. (c) Financial instrument disclosures

Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

 Interest rate exposure Maturity dates
Weighted Fixed Variable Non-       
Average Carrying interest interest interest Nominal Up to 1  3 months to More than 5
Effective Amount rate rate bearing Amount month 1-3 months 1 year 1-5 years years
Interest    

Rate

2016 % $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2.26 447,934 447,934 447,934 447,934
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2.26 3,511,922 3,511,922 3,511,922 3,511,922
Receivables (a)  455,095 455,095 455,095 455,095  
      
 4,414,951 0 3,959,856 455,095 4,414,951 4,414,951 0 0 0 0

Financial Liabilities
Payables (b)  12,338  12,338 12,338 12,338  
      
 12,338 0 0 12,338 12,338 12,338 0 0 0 0

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
(b) The amount of payables excludes GST payable to the ATO (statutory payable).

The following table details the Commission's interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities.  The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The 
interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item. 
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Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2016
 

Note 19. (c) Financial instrument disclosures

Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates
Weighted Fixed Variable Non-       
Average Carrying interest interest interest Nominal Up to 1  3 months to More than 5
Effective Amount rate rate bearing Amount month 1-3 months 1 year 1-5 years years
Interest    

Rate

2015 % $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2.70 261,161 261,161 261,161 261,161
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2.70 6,778,091 6,778,091 6,778,091 6,778,091
Receivables (a)  1,337,767 1,337,767 1,337,767 1,337,767   
      
 8,377,019 0 7,039,252 1,337,767 8,377,019 8,377,019 0 0 0 0

Financial Liabilities
Payables (b)  2,602  2,602 2,602 2,602  
      
 2,602 0 0 2,602 2,602 2,602 0 0 0 0

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
(b) The amount of payables excludes GST payable to the ATO (statutory payable).
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Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016

Note 19. (c) Financial instrument disclosures (contd)

 -100 basis points  +100 basis points  
Carrying amount Surplus Equity  Surplus Equity

2016 $ $ $  $ $

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 447,934                    (4,479)                   (4,479)                   4,479 4,479

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,511,922                 (35,119)                 (35,119)                 35,119 35,119

Financial Liabilities

      

Total Increase/(Decrease) (39,599)                 (39,599)                 39,599 39,599

 -100 basis points  +100 basis points  
Carrying amount Surplus Equity  Surplus Equity

2015 $ $ $  $ $

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 261,161 (2,612)                   (2,612)                   2,612 2,612

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 6,778,091 (67,781)                 (67,781)                 67,781 67,781

Financial Liabilities

       

Total Increase/(Decrease) (70,393)                 (70,393)                 70,393 70,393

Interest rate sensitivity analysis 
 
The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Commission's financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period on the 
surplus for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that the change in interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period. 

Fair values 
 
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts 
that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes. 

Page 57

Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia 
Annual Report 2015-2016



Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016

 
 Note 20. Commitments

 Note 21. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

 

 Note 22. Events occurring after the end of the reporting period

                          
                       

The Commission is not aware of any matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial year to the date of this report which has 
significantly affected or may significantly affect the activities of the Commission, the results of those activities or the state of affairs of the Commission in the 
ensuing or any subsequent year. 
 

                                   
     

                                 

The Commission is not aware of any contingent liabilities and contingent assets as at the end of the reporting period. 
 

 
     
 

 

As at 30 June 2016 the Commission did not have any other material capital or expenditure commitments. 
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Key Performance Indicators 
Key performance indicators are required under the Financial Management Act 2006 and are 
provided to assist interested parties such as Government, Parliament and community groups 
in assessing an agency’s performance in meeting its desired outcomes.  Key performance 
indicators measure the effectiveness and efficiency of an agency. 
 
Certification of Key Performance Indicators  

We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, are 
relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the performance of the Gaming and 
Wagering Commission of Western Australia, and fairly represent the performance of the 
Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia for the financial year ended 
30 June 2016. 
 
 
 

 
 

Barry A Sargeant Colleen Hayward 
Chairperson Member 
Gaming and Wagering Commission of 
Western Australia 

Gaming and Wagering Commission of 
Western Australia 

 
13 September 2016 

 
13 September 2016 
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Detailed Information in Support of Key Performance Indicators 

Agency Level Government Desired Outcomes and Key Effectiveness Indicators 

Desired Outcome: To regulate and maintain the integrity of lawful gambling activities. 
 
The Gaming and Wagering Commission (the Commission) administers the law relating to 
community and social gaming, wagering and casino gaming.  The Commission formulates 
and implements policies for the scrutiny and control of gaming and wagering taking into 
account the requirements and interests of the community as a whole and the need to 
minimise harm caused by gambling. 
 
The Commission has a significant focus on the responsible service of gaming and wagering 
products, harm minimisation and on the integrity of gaming and wagering activities and 
operators.  
 
A comprehensive legislative framework operates within the State with the aim of: 

 Preventing criminal interests from operating gaming and wagering activities; and 

 Maintaining the integrity of lawful gaming and wagering activities within a framework that 
minimises harm.  

 
The Commission’s licensing and compliance regimes verify the integrity of gambling 
operators through initial probity checks and ongoing licensing and audit and inspection 
requirements.  
 
 

Key Effectiveness Indicator 2012-13 
Actual 

2013-14 
Actual 

2014-15 
Actual 

2015-16 
Target 

2015-16 
Actual 

Percentage of unlawful gambling 
detected in relation to total audits 1.50% 1.19% 0.87% 0.91% 0.49% 

Number of violation reports/ 
infringement notices issued in 
relation to casino gaming 

11 9 5 5 4 

 
The specific licensing requirements imposed by the Commission provide increased certainty 
about the quality and integrity of the lawful gaming and wagering products. The Commission 
approves game rules and associated procedures to ensure that the operators of gaming and 
wagering activities provide consistent and fair outcomes in accordance with the conditions of 
their approvals.   
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The Commission’s licensing regime requires licences, permits, approvals, authorisations and 
certificates, as appropriate, to be issued in relation to persons, premises, casinos, facilities, 
gaming, equipment and gaming and wagering operations.  

It is difficult to determine future trends in relation to the casino as business decisions made 
by the Casino Licensee determine the number of: 
 Submissions provided; and

 New staff employed by the casino that require a casino employee licence.

The table below shows that the cost per incidents of unlawful gambling has increased from 
last year; this is due to a reduced number of instances of unlawful gambling detected in  
2015-16. The table also shows the costs associated with issuing licences and the costs 
associated with monitoring the probity and integrity of the gambling industry over the past 
four financial years. 

Key Efficiency Indicator 2012-13 
Actual 

2013-14 
Actual 

2014-15 
Actual 

2015-16 
Target 

2015-16 
Actual 

Cost per Gambling 
Certificate/Permit issued $476 $491 $521 $602 $499 

Cost per Casino Employee 
Licence issued $644 $779 $798 $834 $1,312 

Cost of monitoring the integrity 
of casino gaming operations 
over one year 

$95,025 $111,937 $240,874 $212,181 $264,272 

Cost per instance of unlawful 
gambling detected $23,756 $35,980 $47,541 $53,045 $99,102 

Cost per casino submission 
received $532 $936 $845 $855 $929 

Cost per Gambling Certificate/Permit issued: This figure is derived by dividing the cost 
allocation for the activity by the number of licences and permits issued. The overall decrease 
in average cost is due to more licences and permits issued during the year compared to last 
year. The actual average cost is lower than budget is due to the increased number of 
licences and permits issued during the year. 

Cost per Casino Employee Licence issued: This figure is derived by dividing the cost 
allocation for the activity by the number of licences issued. The overall increase in average 
cost is due to less casino employee licences being compared to prior year.  

Cost of monitoring the integrity of casino gaming operations over one year: This is derived by 
dividing the cost allocation for the activity by the number of violation reports issued. The 
increase in average cost of monitoring the integrity of casino gaming operations compared to 
prior year is due to the decrease in the number of incidences detected and an increase in 
cost allocated. 

Cost per instance of unlawful gambling: This is derived from dividing the cost allocation by 
the number of breaches detected. The increase in average cost per instance of unlawful 
gambling compared to prior year is due to the decrease in the number of incidences 
detected. 
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Cost per casino submission received: This is derived from dividing the cost allocation by the 
number of submission received. The overall average cost is higher than the prior year due to 
less submissions being received during the year.  

The table below provides a comparative snapshot of the target and actual costs allocated to 
activities over 2015-16. 

Key Efficiency Indicator 2015-16 Target 2015-16 Actual 
Cost 

Allocated 
Number 

Completed 
Cost 

Allocated 
Number 

Completed 
Total cost of Gambling 
Certificate/Permit issued $1,548,318 2,570 $1,364,177 2,732 

Total Cost of Casino Employee 
Licences issued $833,710 1,000 $909,452 693 

Total cost of monitoring the integrity 
of casino gaming operations $1,060,903 5 $1,057,088 4 

Total cost of unlawful gambling 
detected $1,591,355 30 $1,585,632 16 

Total of processing casino 
submissions $54,714 64 $46,469 50 

Total Cost of Services $5,089,000 $4,962,817 

The table above highlights the following facts: 

 Costs allocated are a percentage of the overall output (licensing or compliance) cost. The
actual cost allocated for gambling certificate/permits issued are lower than targeted costs
due to a lower than targeted output cost.

 Costs allocated to casino employee licences are higher than targeted due to an increase
in the percentage of total output costs allocated to licensing activity. This increase was
based on a reassessment of effort between licensing and compliance.

 The actual cost allocated for monitoring integrity of casino gaming operations and
unlawful gambling detected are slightly less than budgeted costs due to one less
compliance activity carried out during the year, resulting in greater cost allocated.
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The table below details the number of actual audits, inspections, investigations and 
assessments completed during the year compared to the target amount.  

Audits/Inspections/Investigations/Assessments 2015-16 
Target 

2015-16 
Actual Difference 

Racing 393 384 (9) 

Lotterywest 1,065 1,061 (4) 

Gaming 553 255 (298) 

Casino 2,046 2,351 305 

Totals 4,057 4,051 (6) 

Racing: The number of racing audits completed was impacted by an increased focus on 
racing activity and the availability of consistently more inspectorate resources.  

Gaming: The number of gaming audits completed can be directly impacted by the availability 
and focus of inspectorate resources; this may lead to variations from targets. Removal of a 
permanent onsite inspectorate presence at Crown Perth casino necessitated more audits and 
inspections in that area to validate the approach. This resulted in less capacity for gaming 
audits that were assessed to be lower risk. 

Casino: In the year the inspectorate conducted more inspections of gaming machines than 
targeted due to the availability of additional resources during public holidays. The removal of 
the permanent onsite inspectorate presence at Crown Perth also resulted in a greater focus 
on audit and inspection activity at Crown Perth to validate the strategy 

A breakdown of costs, other than expenses related to restricted cash and special purpose 
accounts, is provided in the table below. 

Operating Expenses 2015-16 
Target 

2015-16 
Actual Difference 

Fees paid to board members $100,000 $77,643 ($22,357) 

Superannuation expense to GESB $9,500 $7,376 ($2,124) 

Problem Gambling Expenditure $61,000 $61,500 $500 

Services provided by DRGL $4,643,760 $4,643,760 $0 

Conference and Seminar fees $20,000 $5,402 ($14,598) 

Capital expenditure $200,000 $100,000 ($100,000) 

Other operating expenses $54,740 $67,136 $12,396 

Total Cost of Service $5,089,000 $4,962,817 $126,183 
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Ministerial Directives 

Section 48 of the Gaming and Wagering Commission Act 1987, enables the Minister, in 
instances where there is a major sporting event or a special occasion, to direct the 
Commission to issue a permit for the conduct of a specified gaming activity.  

During 2015-16, the Minister directed the Commission on three occasions to issue permits for 
the conduct of two-up on Anzac Day to the:  

 Rockingham Naval Association Club;

 Returned and Services League of Australia (WA Branch) sub branches (total of 46
permits); and

 Yarloop Volunteer Bush Fire Brigade.

Governance Disclosures 

Contracts with Senior Officers 

At the date of reporting, other than normal contracts of employment of service, no senior 
officers, nor firms of which senior officers are members, or entities in which Senior officers 
have substantial interests had any interests in existing or proposed contracts with the 
Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia and senior officers. 

Unauthorised Use of Credit Cards 

There have been no identified instances of unauthorised use of corporate credit cards. 

Page 67

Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia
Annual Report 2015-2016



Other Financial Disclosures 

Pricing Policies of Service Provided 

When analysing its fees and charges, the Commission considers the Department of 
Treasury’s recommendation that agencies’ fees and charges should achieve full cost 
recovery where applicable. In addition, the Commission also considers the Joint Standing 
Committee on Delegated Legislation’s recommendations that fees and charges do not 
exceed cost recovery and/or do not cross subsidise.  

In setting fees, the Commission recognises that not for profit organisations and charitable 
bodies form a large part of the Commission’s customer base. Fees for services levied under 
the respective regulations should not pose a barrier to entry for those organisations 
attempting to raise funds through lawful gambling activities.  

The Commission is fully aware that increasing the fees to meet cost recovery will impose 
barriers to entry, which is something that the Commission is reluctant to do.  Consistent with 
the Department of Treasury’s instructions, increases that approximate CPI or catch up on 
CPI applied over previous years are to be considered routinely by the Minister.  

The Commission’s fees and charges were increased on 1 January 2016.  The list of fees and 
charges are available on the Department’s website at www.rgl.wa.gov.au and are reviewed 
annually.  

Remuneration of Members 

During the reporting period, the following remuneration figures applied to Commission 
members. 

Commission Member Total 

Trevor Fisher $18,816 

Robert Bovell $18,816 

Andrew Duckworth $18,816 

Kevin Harrison $9,756 

Colleen Hayward $18,816 

Total $85,020 

The following table outlines remuneration for members of the Gaming Community Trust: 

Trust Member All Earnings Superannuation 

Jan Cooper $142 $13.49 

Stephen Reynolds $142 $13.49 

Maxine Connolly $142 $13.49 

Total $426 $40.47 
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Capital Works 
 
There were no capital works undertaken by the Gaming and Wagering Commission during 
2014-15. 
 
Staff Profile 
 
The Commission does not employ staff but has a net appropriation agreement with the 
Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor that relates to functions carried out on behalf of 
the Commission by staff from the Department.  Accordingly, the Commission does not report 
on compliance with these issues.  The Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor’s Annual 
Report contains relevant information.  
 

Other Legal and Government Policy Requirements 

Advertising 

In accordance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, the Commission must report on 
any expenditure incurred for advertising, market research, polling, direct mail and media 
advertising.  Total expenditure for 2014-15 was $1,698.55 with expenditure incurred in the 
following area:   
 
 Total 

Government Agencies $1,698.55 
 

Other Government Policy Requirements 

The Commission meets its requirements through arrangements with the Department of 
Racing, Gaming and Liquor.  The Department’s Annual Report contains information on how 
the Department meets the following requirements:  

 Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes; 

 Compliance with Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes; 

 Recordkeeping Plans;  

 Substantive Equality; and 

 Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management. 
 

Page 69

Gaming and Wagering Commission of Western Australia 
Annual Report 2015-2016


	GWC 2015-2016 Annual Report
	Table of Contents
	Contacts
	Statement of Compliance
	Overview of the Commission
	Executive Summary

	Operational Structure
	Report on Operations
	Licensing Program
	Compliance Program
	National Gambling Statistics
	Significant Issues Impacting the Commission
	Activities of the Gaming Community Trust
	Activities of the Problem Gambling Support Services Committee
	Disclosures and Legal Compliance
	Financial Statements
	KPI Certification
	Detailed Information in Support of Key Performance Indicators
	Auditor General's Statement

	Ministerial Directives
	Governance Disclosures
	Other Financial Disclosures
	Other Legal and Government Policy Requirements



